
Civic Centre, Windmill Street, Gravesend Kent DA12 1AU

Gravesham Joint 
Transportation Board

Members of the Gravesham Joint Transportation Board of Gravesham Borough Council are 
summoned to attend a meeting to be held at the Civic Centre, Gravesend, Kent on Wednesday, 
15 March 2017 at 7.30 pm when the business specified in the following agenda is proposed to be 
transacted.

S Kilkie
Assistant Director (Communities)

Agenda

Part A
Items likely to be considered in Public

1. Apologies 

2. To sign the minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 8)

3. To declare any interests members may have in the items contained on this 
agenda.   When declaring an interest members should state what their 
interest is. 

4. To consider whether any items in Part A of the agenda should be 
considered in private or those (if any) in Part B in public 

5. Gravesham Highway Works Programme (Information only) - report 
herewith. 

(Pages 9 - 26)

6. London Road Highways Issues, Gravesend Report (Discussion Only) - 
report herewith. 

(Pages 27 - 28)

7. Parking Restrictions - Milroy Avenue, Gravesend Report (Discussion Only) 
- report herewith. 

(Pages 29 - 30)

Public Document Pack



8. Lorry Park at Nell's Cafe and Lorry Parking on the A2 - requested by 
County Councillor Colin Caller and County Councillor Diane Marsh 

9. Any Other Business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair is 
of the opinion should be considered as a matter of urgency. 

10.Exclusion 
To move, if required, that pursuant to Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 that the public be excluded from any items 
included in Part B of the agenda because it is likely in view of the nature 
of the business to be transacted that if members of the public are present 
during those items, there would be disclosure to them of exempt 
information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act. 

Part B 
Items likely to be considered in Private

None at the time of publication.

Members

County Councillor Bryan Sweetland (Chair)
Cllr Lesley Boycott (Vice-Chair)

Councillors: John Burden
Lee Croxton
Sara Langdale
Robin Theobald
Colin Caller (KCC)
Sue Howes (KCC)
Diane Marsh (KCC)
Narinder Singh Thandi (KCC)

Substitutes: To be notified



1

Gravesham Joint Transportation Board

Wednesday, 7 December 2016 7.30 pm

Present:

County Councillor Bryan Sweetland (Chair)

Councillors: John Burden
Lee Croxton
Sara Langdale
Robin Theobald
Colin Caller (KCC)
Diane Marsh (KCC)

Note:  Councillor Peter Scollard was also in attendance

Lisa Gillham District Manager – Gravesham (KCC)
Ian Baruch Parking Manager
Carlie Simmonds Committee Services Manager

Mrs Elizabeth Jeffery Higham Parish Council
Mr Colin Talboys Vigo Parish Council

43. Apologies 

Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Lesley Boycott (Vice-Chair) and County Cllr 
Susan Howes.

44. Minutes 

The Minutes of the meeting held on 14 September 2016 were signed by the Chair.

Further to minute 39 (14.09.2016), Councillor Robin Theobald advised that KCC was 
requested to reconsider the extension of the 30mph speed restriction and asked for an 
update.

The District Manager – Gravesham (KCC) advised that she would provide Councillor 
Theobald with an update outside of the meeting.

45. Declaration of Interest

County Cllr Bryan Sweetland announced an “Other Interest” in item 10 (Request for yellow 
lines on Milroy Avenue, Coopers Road and Mitchell Avenue in order to improve the 
restriction to buses) as his wife owns a property on Milroy Avenue. 

Page 3 Agenda Item 2



Gravesham Joint Transportation Board 7.12.2016

2

46. Highway Works Programme 2016/17 

The Board received a report which identified the schemes that had been approved for 
construction by Kent County Council (KCC) in 2016/17. An update on the Combined
Member Grant Program was also provided within the report.

Further to Minute 42 (14.09.2016), County Cllr Diane Marsh requested an update on the 
report due to be submitted to the Board detailing the lessons learnt further to the recent 
highways work undertaken in the Harmer Street/Milton Road area by a utility company. 

The District Manager – Gravesham (KCC) advised that the following statement had been 
received from the Street Works Manager (KCC):- 

Although these works caused a significant level of disruption due to the location and heavy 
traffic flows we do not feel that the works could have been managed any differently.  

The original plan was to close Milton Road which would have caused even greater 
disruption, so the decision was made to keep traffic flowing albeit under temporary traffic 
signals.  

These were essential works to replace old decaying mains and we were never going to 
achieve this scheme at this location with no disruption.

We feel that SGN did the best they could taking into account the difficulties of this location 
and the engineering difficulties they faced trying to locate and replace the old gas mains.  

There were a couple of days where the lights were not being managed properly but we dealt 
with that at the time.  The area inspector visited site regularly and dealt with any issues as 
they arose.

We did not have a wash up meeting but regular progress meetings were held with KCC and 
SGN throughout the works. 

The District Manager – Gravesham (KCC) advised that KCC had minimum 
control/involvement with works, roads closure etc. when they  relate to essential utility works. 

The Board felt that KCC’s statement was inadequate and expressed its dissatisfaction 
regarding the management of the works particularly as it caused major disruption to local 
residents and businesses. The Board also reiterated that there needed to be better 
communication between the utility companies undertaking the works, KCC and GBC.

With regard to the new Crematorium on Gravesend Road, the Board advised that it had 
previously expressed concern regarding the need for a filter lane and stated that KCC rarely 
objected to a development proposal particularly during the planning process. 

The District Manager – Gravesham (KCC) advised that a road safety audit would have been 
undertaken for the Crematorium which would have indicated whether there was a need for a 
filter lane and that road safety audits would also be undertaken on any development 
proposals submitted to KCC. 

Page 4



Gravesham Joint Transportation Board 7.12.2016

3

The Board requested that it be sent a copy of the road safety audit for the Crematorium and 
requested that KCC’s criteria/rational for objecting to a development proposal be submitted 
to the next meeting of the Board with particular regard to the Crematorium. 

The Chair reminded County Cllrs that their Member Highway Fund was unable to be carried 
over due to the upcoming KCC Elections. 

Resolved that a copy of the road safety audit for the Crematorium be sent to the 
Board and KCC’s criteria/rational for objecting to a development proposal be 
submitted to the next meeting of the Board with particular regard to the Crematorium. 

47. Local Winter Service Plan 

The Board received a report which provided details of those arrangements that have been 
made between KCC and GBC to provide a local winter service in the event of an operational 
snow alert in the borough.

The District Manager – Gravesham (KCC) advised that the Local Winter Service Plan for 
Gravesham was a working document which will evolve and be revised as necessary. The 
Plan complements the KCC Winter Service Policy and Plan 2016/17 which was available on 
KCC’s website. 

The Board was advised that the policy had been presented to KCC’s Environment and 
Transport Cabinet Committee on 9 September 2016 and subsequently approved by the 
Cabinet Member.

The Board requested that it be provided with the prioritisation for footway clearance in the 
event of snow. 

County Cllr Caller reminded the Board that salt bins were available via the Member Highway 
Fund and suggested that any requests be made to the local County Cllr(s). 

Resolved that the prioritisation for footway clearance in the event of snow be sent to 
the Board. 

48. Progress report on Rathmore Road Link Road scheme 

Further to minute 20 (09.12.2015), the Board received a report which provided an update on 
the Rathmore Road Link scheme.

The District Manager – Gravesham (KCC) advised that following a competitive tendering 
process the contract was awarded to Jackson Civil Engineering Ltd. 

The main works contract commenced in June 2016 and works were currently on track to be 
completed by October 2017.

It had been planned to undertake the bridge strengthening works to the brick arch tunnel 
beneath Railway Place in advance of the contract however due to delays in gaining 
approvals from Network Rail, the works commenced on 12 October 2016 and were due to 
be completed shortly. 

Page 5



Gravesham Joint Transportation Board 7.12.2016

4

The Board advised that it had previously raised its concern regarding the potential impact to 
the road network if articulated delivery lorries continue to use Railway Place and Manor 
Road. The Parking Manager advised that consideration was being given to extending the 
yellow lines in order to mitigate any impact on the traffic flow/articulated delivery lorries. 

49. Speed Limit - London Road, Northfleet (between Dover Road and Rural 
Vale) reduction from 40mph to 30mph. This request follows a fatal 
accident involving a pedestrian in June - Request by Councillor Peter 
Scollard. 

Councillor Peter Scollard requested the Board’s support for traffic calming measures on 
London Road, Northfleet (between Dover Road and Rural Vale) following several fatalities 
(the most recent being in June 2016) and a number of incidents. 

The Board was informed that it was felt that the following traffic calming measures were 
required to improve safety to pedestrian and encourage safer and more responsible driving:- 

 a reduction of the speed limit from 40mph to 30mph;
 a pedestrian crossing near the shopping parade; and 
 appropriate signage. 

Councillor Peter Scollard informed the Board that a petition of support had been received 
containing more than 1000 signatures and that County Cllr Thandi had also expressed his 
support.

The Board unanimously supported the request/petition and requested that:-

 Cllr Peter Scollard:- 
o submits the petition to County Cllr Caller (in the absence of County Cllrs 

Howes and Thandi) for submission to KCC’s Council Meeting on Thursday 8 
December 2016; 

o to draft a letter which will be sent by the Chair, on behalf of the Board, to 
KCC’s Cabinet Member for Environment and Transportation;

o to raise this with County Cllrs Howes and Thandi (as the County Cllrs for that 
division) in order for them to support/pursue this with KCC; 

 County Cllr Caller to raise this at the next meeting of KCC’s Environment and 
Transport Cabinet Committee; and

 the District Manager – Gravesham (KCC) to investigate traffic calming measures and 
whether priority funding would be received. 

Resolved that the Board unanimously supports the request/petition for traffic calming 
measures on London Road, Northfleet (between Dover Road and Rural Vale) and 
that the above be pursued. 

50. Gravesham JTB response to Govia Thameslink Railway 2018 Timetable 
Consultation. 

The Chair informed the Board that Govia Thameslink Railway (GTR) had launched an 
extensive consultation which set out proposed changes to the timetable which will be 
operated by GTR in 2018 following completion of the Thameslink Programme. The 

Page 6

https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=831
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=831


Gravesham Joint Transportation Board 7.12.2016

5

programme will transform north-south travel through London and will be the biggest 
timetable change on the routes affected in a generation. 

The deadline for responses was Thursday 8 December 2016. 

The Chair informed the Board that GBC will be responding specifically to question 16 of the 
consultation as the proposal had an impact on the existing semi-fast service on the North 
Kent line serving Gravesham. 

The Board expressed its concerns regarding the proposals from a Gravesend point of view 
particularly those that relate to the existing semi-fast service and supported GBC's 
response. 

The Board requested that a response be sent on its behalf by the Acting Planning Policy 
Manager mirroring GBC's response noting that the local Parish Councils also have the same 
views.

Resolved that a response be sent by the Acting Planning Policy Manager on behalf 
of the Board mirroring GBC's response noting that the local Parish Councils have the 
same views.

51. Request for yellow lines on Milroy Avenue, Coopers Road and Mitchell 
Avenue in order to improve the restriction to buses - Request by 
Councillor Bronwen McGarrity. 

The Chair advised that this item had been placed on the agenda by Councillor Bronwen 
McGarrity requesting for yellow lines on Milroy Avenue, Coopers Road and Mitchell Avenue 
in order to improve the restriction to buses.

The District Manager – Gravesham (KCC) advised that they had not received any 
complaints to date regarding the restriction to buses.

Resolved that:- 

 the item be deferred in order for Cllr Bronwen McGarrity to give an explanation at a 
future meeting of the Board and to allow the local County Cllrs to be briefed; and 

 this be investigated further by KCC together with any potential solutions i.e. would 
yellow lines be supported.

Close of meeting 

The meeting ended at 8.36pm

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



To:             Gravesham Joint Transportation Board 

By:             KCC Highways, Transportation & Waste

Date: 15th March 2017

Subject:  Highway Works Programme 2016/17

Classification: Information Only 

Summary: This report updates Members on the identified schemes approved for 
construction in 2016/17

1. Introduction 

This report provides an update and summarises schemes that have been programmed 
for delivery in 2016/17 

Footway and Carriageway Improvement Schemes – see Appendix A

Drainage Repairs & Improvements – see Appendix B

Street Lighting – see Appendix C

Transportation and Safety Schemes – see Appendix D
 Casualty Reduction Measures 
 Local Growth Fund 

Developer Funded Works – see Appendix E

Bridge Works – see Appendix F

Traffic Systems – see Appendix G

Combined Member Fund – see Appendix H

Conclusion 

1. This report is for Members information.

Page 9 Agenda Item 5



Contact Officers:

The following contact officers can be contacted on 03000 418181
 
Carol Valentine Highway Manager (West)
Lisa Gillham Gravesham District Manager
Alan Casson                    Resurfacing Manager
Kevin Gore      Drainage Manager/Structures Manager
Sue Kinsella Street Lighting Manager
Toby Butler Intelligent Transport Systems Manager
Melvyn Twycross                      PROW
Jamie Hare Developer Funded Work
Jamie Watson Transportation and Safety Schemes
Jamie Watson Combined Member Fund

Page 10



Appendix A – Footway and Carriageway Improvement Schemes

The delivery of these schemes is weather dependent; should it prove not possible to carry out 
these works on the planned dates, new dates will be arranged and the residents will be informed by 
a letter drop to their homes.

Machine Resurfacing – Contact Officer Mr Byron Lovell

Road Name Parish Extent of Works Current Status

Crete Hall Road Northfleet
Between Rosherville Way and 

Kimberly Clark Roundabout
FULL RECON

IN PROGRESS
Phase 1 – 

Substantially 
complete

Phase 2 & 3- 
Commenced to 

complete at the end 
of March 2017

Footway Improvement - Contact Officer Mr Neil Tree

None

Surface Treatments - Contact Officer Mr Clive Lambourne

Avon Close Gravesend Micro Surfacing 
Whole Length Completed

Buckland Road Luddesdowne
Surface Dressing 

Lockyers Hill to Cutters 
Ridge

Completed

Downs Road Gravesham Micro Surfacing 
Nash Bank to Arcadia Road Completed

Longfield Road Meopham
Micro Surfacing 

Wrotham Road to change 
of surface

Completed

Stuart Road Gravesend Micro Surfacing 
Whole Length Postponed

Page 11



Appendix B – Drainage

Drainage Works – Contact Officer Katie Moreton

Road Name Parish Description of Works Current Status

No drainage works planned over £5000

Appendix C – Street Lighting

Structural testing of KCC owned street lights has identified the following as requiring replacement 
this financial year. A status of complete identifies that the column replacement has been carried 
out. Programme dates are identified for those still requiring replacement.   

Street Lighting Column Replacement – Contact Officer Sue Kinsella

Road Name Parish Description of Works Status

Earl Road Gravesend Replacement of 2 no street light 
complete with LED Lanterns Completed

Chalk Road Gravesend Replacement of 5 no street lights 
complete with LED Lanterns Completed

Overcliffe Gravesend Replacement of 3 no street lights 
complete with LED Lanterns

2 
completed/ 

1 to 
complete by 
March 2017

Eden Place Gravesend Replacement of 2 no street lights 

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Artillery Row Gravesend Replacement of 6 no street lights Completed

Armoury Drive Gravesend Replacement of 5 no street lights Completed

Cerne Road Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights Completed

Coombe Road Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights Completed

Page 12



Glen View Gravesend Replacement of  1 no street lights Completed

London Road Gravesend Replacement of 7 no street lights 
6 

completed/1 
to finish

Homemead Close Gravesend Replacement of 4 no street lights 

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Parrock Road Gravesend Replacement of 3 no street lights Completed

Bronte View Gravesend Replacement of 7 no street lights 

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Ford Road Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights Completed

Lord Street Gravesend Replacement of 2 no street lights 

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Parrock Street Gravesend Replacement of 6 no street lights 

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Stonebridge Road Gravesend Replacement of 3 no street lights 

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

The Hill Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights 

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Dover Road Gravesend Replacement of 2 no street lights 
Works 

programmed 
for 

completion 

Page 13



by March 
2017

Grove Road Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights Completed

Whitehill Road Gravesend Replacement of 3 no street lights 

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Old Road East Gravesend Replacement of 10 no street lights 

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Lower Higham Road Gravesend Replacement of 4 no street lights 

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Earl Road Gravesend Replacement of 2 no street lights 

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Pelham Rd South Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights Completed

Perry Street Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Springhead Road Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights Completed

Old Perry Street Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Vale Road Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights Completed

Chalk Road Gravesend Replacement of 4 no street lights Completed

Wrotham Road Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights Works 

Page 14



programmed 
for 

completion 
by March 

2017

Pine Avenue Gravesend Replacement of 6 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Boucher Drive Gravesend Replacement of 5 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Allanbrooke Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

New House Lane Gravesend Replacement of 3 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Parrock Avenue Gravesend Replacement of 2 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Oak Drive Higham Replacement of 2 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Hamerton Road Gravesend Replacement of 3 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Shepherds Street Gravesend Replacement of 2 no street lights Works 

Page 15



programmed 
for 

completion 
by March 

2017

Flowerhill Way Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Castle Lane Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Reynolds Fields Higham Replacement of 1 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Forge Lane Chalk Replacement of 1 no street lights Completed

The Turnstones Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights Completed

The Creek Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Factory Road Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Robinia Avenue Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Rural Vale Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights Completed

Gordon Road Gravesend Replacement of 2 no street lights Works 
programmed 

Page 16



for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Beaumont Drive Gravesend Replacement of 2 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Cremorne Road Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

St Marks Avenue Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Joy Road Gravesend Replacement of 3 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Christ Church Rd Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Christ Church Crescent Gravesend Replacement of 2 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

South Hill Road Gravesend Replacement of 4 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Shrubbery Road Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights Works 
programmed 

Page 17



for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Westhill Close Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Cherrywood Drive Gravesend Replacement of 5 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Miller Road Chalk Replacement of 1 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Priests Walk Chalk Replacement of 1 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Coopers Road Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

The Crescent Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Newmans Rd Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Stanley Rd Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights Works 
programmed 

Page 18



for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Sunning Hill Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Snelling Avenue Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Lawrence Square Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Garden Row Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Farmcroft Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Church Walk Gravesend Replacement of 3 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Clarence Row Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Oaklands Rd Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights Works 
programmed 

Page 19



for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Mulberry Rd Gravesend Replacement of 1 no street lights

Works 
programmed 

for 
completion 
by March 

2017

Appendix D – Transportation and Safety Schemes

Casualty Reduction Measures

The Traffic Schemes team is implementing schemes within Gravesham borough, in order to meet 
Kent County Council’s (KCC) strategic targets (for example, addressing traffic congestion or 
improving road safety).  Casualty reduction measures have been identified to address a known 
history of personal injury crashes. Current status correct as of 11th February 2016.

Local Transport Plan funded schemes – Contact officer Thomas Williams
Road Name Description of works Current status
Casualty reduction measures (reactive) – 2014/15

Darnley Road 
junction with 
Arthur Street

Relocation of residents parking bays; 
relocation of southbound bus stop; 
additional waiting restrictions to 
improve intervisibility.

Works now complete.

Local Growth Fund

Local Growth Fund programme update for the Gravesham Borough.

The Department for Transport (DfT) added £100m to the Local Growth Fund (LGF) pot in order to 
fund Local Sustainable Transport Fund Style schemes.  KCC subsequently submitted four Local 
Sustainable Transport Fund (LSTF) capital bids 1) East Kent – A network for Growth, 2) Kent 
Thameside – Integrated door-to-door journeys and 3) West Kent – Tackling Congestion.  The 
fourth was for Tonbridge Town Centre Regeneration, which included a highway improvements 
scheme in the Lower High Street as well as additional LSTF style measures.  The objective of all 
of the capital bids is to boost economic growth by decreasing carbon emissions and reducing 
congestion.

The Kent Thameside, West Kent and Tonbridge Town Centre Regeneration bids were all 
successful. The schemes aim to:

 improve access to employment and services
 reduce the need to travel by the private car
 enhance pedestrian, cycle and public transport facilities
 improve sustainable transport connections

Page 20



The following schemes have been submitted as part of the successful Kent Thameside LSTF this 
financial year.

Scheme Status
Gravesend Wayfinding Signs Installation of the monoliths and finger posts is 

underway and due to complete at the end of 
February 2017 

Gravesend cycle hub Cycle Hub construction is complete.  Tender is 
being agreed for the tenancy to run the cycle 
maintenance and shop.

Cycle Hub to Cyclopark cycle route – a 
signed route between the cycle hub and 
Cyclopark which is suitable for less confident 
cyclists.

Consultants have been commissioned to design 
and build the route.  Consultation will take place 
once outline designs are complete, anticipated to 
be early in 2017.

Appendix E – Developer Funded Works

Developer Funded Works (Section 278 Agreement Works) – Contact Officer Aaron Divall

Scheme Name Mastergov 
File Ref No

Parish Description of Works Current Status

Coldharbour 
Road, Northfleet GR2047 Northfleet

Works associated with 
new hotel and public 

house – includes 
providing a new 

Bellmouth, central 
island to be installed to 
prevent right hand turn 

movements and 
associated ancillary 

works

Works complete
Lighting inspection

As-built documentation 
and H&S File required

Sainsbury’s 
Store, Phase 2  

Pepperhill, 
Northfleet

GR2048 Northfleet

Phase 2 of works 
associated with 
Sainsbury Store 

Extension - Installation 
of new right hand turn 

lane on Hall Road Over 
bridge (and tie in works 
to A2 coast bound on 
slip) with associated 

toucan crossings, 
narrowing of existing 

central island and 
widening of A2 London 
bound off slip to New 

Barn Roundabout

End of maintenance 
awaiting confirmation 

from Highways England 

Page 21



Dykes Pit, Dover 
Rd, Gravesend GR003002 Gravesend

Works associated with 
new housing 

development at 245-
247 Dover Rd, by 

Rydon Homes. 
Creation of new 

entrance, alterations to 
existing kerb line and 

introduction of 
pedestrian crossing 

control to one section of 
existing traffic lights

Works completed 
paperwork to be 

completed.

Wimbourne 
House, Truro 

Road, 
Gravesend

GR003005 Gravesend

Extension of footpath 
from Bellmouth for 

approximately 50m in 
direction of Valley Drive

Works complete, 
defects to be 

addressed before first 
certificate issued.

BP Tollgate 
Station, 

Wrotham Road, 
Northfleet

GR003009 Northfleet
Creation of new access 

to serve BP Tollgate 
Station

New drawings 
received, awaiting 
technical approval

Gravesham 
Crematorium, 

Gravesend Rd, 
Gravesend

GR003010 Gravesend

Creation of Bellmouth 
and footpath links to 

serve new crematorium 
including new f/way link 
to eastern bus stop on 

other side of road

Surfacing works 
complete, first 

certificate issued

Ebbsfleet United 
FC GR003013 Northfleet Footway works for new 

entrance

Awaiting Technical 
Approval issues over 
fasttrack and future 

developments.

Lion Roundabout GR00317 Gravesend

Realignment of 
roundabout, removal of 
planters, upgrading of 

pelican crossing to 
toucan and instillation 

of joint 
footway/cycleway 

around roundabout

Technical approval – 
awaiting legal 

agreement

Page 22



Appendix F – Bridge Works

Bridge Works – Contact Officer Kevin Gore

Road Name Parish Description of Works Current Status

No works planned

Appendix G – Traffic Systems

There is a programme of scheduled maintenance to refurbish life expired traffic signal equipment across 
the county based upon age and fault history. The delivery of these schemes is dependent upon school 
terms and holiday periods; local residents, businesses and schools will be informed verbally and by a 
letter drop of the exact dates when known. 

Traffic Systems - Contact Officer: Toby Butler
 

Location Description of Works Current Status

No traffic signal refurbishment work being 
carried out this year  

Appendix H - Combined Member Grant program update 

  Member Highway Fund programme update for the Gravesham District.

The following schemes are those, which have been approved for funding by both the relevant 
Member and by Roger Wilkins, Director of Highways, Transportation and Waste. The list only 
includes schemes, which are 

 in design 
 at consultation stage
 about to be programmed
 Recently completed on site. 

The list is up to date as of 10/02/2017

The details given below are for highway projects only.  This report does not detail 

 Contributions Members have made to other groups such as parish councils
 highway studies

Page 23



 traffic/ non-motorised user surveys funded by Members.  

More information on the schemes listed below can be found via Kent Gateway, the online 
database for all Combined Member Grant schemes and studies, or by contacting the Traffic and 
Safety Engineer for the Combined Member Grant (Gravesham district – Thomas Williams). 

Bryan Sweetland
Details of Scheme Status

14-MHF-GR-72 Speedwatch, Cobham
Various locations – improvements to address safety problems highlighted the 
Community Speedwatch scheme.

Works in 
Progress

16-MHF-GR-6 Parking Restrictions, Meopham 
Design, Consultation and Installation of double yellow lines at Biddenden Way/ 
Crockenhall Way and Istead Rise/ Brookside Road. 

In 
Consultati

on

 Colin Caller
Details of Scheme Status

16-MHF-GR-1 St Gregory’s Court Dropped Kerb Crossing
St Gregory’s Court dropped kerb crossing. 

Works 
programm

ed
16-MHF-GR-3 Marling Way, Riverview Park
Pedestrian crossing investigation and installation. 

Works 
Programm

ed with 
Contractor

16-MHF-GR-7 Rumania Walk Bollards
Installation along grass verge

Works 
Complete

Diane Marsh
Details of Scheme Status

No Highway Schemes currently available for reporting. 

Jane Cribbon
Details of Scheme Status

16-MHF-GR-4 St Francis Ave, Riverview Park
Pedestrian crossing investigation and installation. 

Works 
Programm

ed with 
Contractor

16-MHF-GR-2 Canal Road Bollards
Bollards to be installed at Canal Road to prevent parking and destruction of verge. 

Works 
Complete

Page 24



Narinderjit Singh Thandi
Details of Scheme Status

13-MHF-GR-22 Darnley Road junction with Arthur Street

Advance warning sign to be installed on Arthur street approach to Darnley Road.  

(Shared with Sue Howes) 

With 
Contractor 

for 
Delivery 

16-MHF-GR-09 Brook Road & Pier Road – footway repairs
The worst sections of concrete footway to be re-constructed in blacktop. Works in 

Progress

Sue Howes
Details of Scheme Status

13-MHF-GR-22 Darnley Road junction with Arthur Street

Advance warning sign to be installed on Arthur street approach to Darnley Road.   
Works 

Complete

16-MHF-GR-5 The Hill, Northfleet, Gravesend.
The painting of lamp columns on The Hill in Northfleet.

With 
Contractor 

for 
Delivery

1.1 Legal Implications

1.1.1 Not applicable.

1.2 Financial and Value for Money Considerations

1.2.1 Not applicable.

1.3 Risk Assessment

1.3.1 Not applicable.

Contacts: Carol Valentine / Lisa Gillham 03000 418181

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



LONDON ROAD HIGHWAY ISSUES, GRAVESEND

To: JTB Gravesham

By: Tom Williams Schemes Project Manager

Classification: Unrestricted

Electoral division: Gravesham WEST  

Date: March 2017

Summary: For DISCUSSION

1.0 Introduction and background

1.1Kent County Council (KCC) received a request from the JTB to respond to the 
request for changes to be made on London Road following a fatal incident.  

1.2  KCC must focus our efforts on any new measures that are deemed as safety 
critical and we do this by analysing the personal injury crash record for the past 
three years in order to establish whether there is a pattern or cluster of crashes 
that could be reduced in number or severity by engineering changes to the 
highway. The current intervention level for a urban location is six incidents 
resulting in a fatal or serious injury / three years. 

1.3 I can confirm that our highway officers have checked the crash record and there 
have been no such clusters at this time. Therefore London Road does not meet 
the intervention criteria for a scheme at present. That said, in response to local 
concerns KCC will be carrying out a speed survey to ascertain current vehicle 
speeds along London Road to see whether a change in speed limit is feasible. 

1.4 It is worth noting that The Hill (which currently has a 30mph limit) has appeared 
as a crash cluster site this year and will be investigated accordingly.

1.5 In addition to what KCC are proposing above, County Members should they wish 
to, may support intervention with their Combined Members Grant in the next 
financial year. There are numerous options that could be looked into pending a 
formal investigation and positive consultation.  County Members should approach 
the District Manager if they would like to pursue this further.

Item Approximate scheme Cost (£)
Speed Cushions £20,000
Speed Limit £6,500
Warning Signage (ped crossing/ elderly) £4,000 (based on 4 lit signs)

Page 27 Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



PARKING RESTRICTIONS – MILROY AVENUE, GRAVESEND

To: JTB Gravesham

By: Tom Williams Schemes Project Manager

Classification: Unrestricted

Electoral division: Gravesham WEST  

Date: March 2017

Summary: For DISCUSSION

1.0      Introduction and background

1.1Kent County Council (KCC) has been asked to prepare a response for the JTB. 
The JTB received a request from Cllr McGarrity for corner protection on Milroy 
Avenue,  Mitchell Avenue and some other surrounding roads.

1.2Bus access issue - More information is needed in order to aid and progress 
KCC’s involvement. KCC’s Public Transportation team may be willing to fund a 
scheme should the bus operators relay the problems directly to Kent County 
Council.

1.3Emergency vehicle access – Obstructing a road is an act punishable by the 
police under Section 137 of the Highways Act. Kent County Council believes that 
the installation of double yellow lines at Stanley Road / Coopers Road junction 
may be an excessive use of restrictions.  KCC has a “pink peril” process in place 
that allows emergency services to report their issues directly to us. We currently 
have no enquiries or complaints from such services regarding this to prompt 
further consideration.  

 

Page 29 Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 To sign the minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Gravesham Highway Works Programme (Information only) - report herewith.
	6 London Road Highways Issues, Gravesend Report (Discussion Only) - report herewith.
	7 Parking Restrictions - Milroy Avenue, Gravesend Report (Discussion Only) - report herewith.

